
Our Mission is to Provide Quality Public Services in a 
Fiscally Responsible Manner While Preserving the City’s 

Open Space Character 

NOTICE OF MEETING  
City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, April 1, 2014 7:00 P.M. 
City of Lake Elmo | 3800 Laverne Avenue North 

AGENDA 
A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call  
D. Order of Business 
E. Approval of Agenda 
F. Accept Minutes 

1. Accept March 18, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes 
G. Council Reports  

• Mayor 
• Council 

H. Public Comments/Inquiries 
I. Proclamation – National Library Week Proclamation 
J. Consent Agenda 

2. Approve Payment of Disbursements and Payroll 
3. 2014 Seal Coat Project – Approve Plans and Specifications and Authorize Ad for Bids; 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-20 
4. Family Means CUP; RESOLUTION NO. 2014-21 
5. Site Plan Review Ordinance; ORDINANCE 08-105 

K. Regular Agenda 
6. Horning Lot Size Variance; RESOLUTION NO. 2014-22 
7. Launch Properties CUP Concept Plan and Zoning Map Amendment; RESOLUTION NO. 2014-23, 

ORDINANCE 08-106 

L. New Business 
8. Joint Services Agreement with ISD 916 
9. Approve the Joint Powers Agreement with the Stillwater School District for the Establishment of 

a Multi-use Park at Oakland Junior High School 

M. Staff Reports and Announcements 
• City Administrator 
• City Attorney 
• Planning Director  
• City Engineer 
• Finance Director 
• City Clerk 

N. Adjourn 
****Item times are estimates and subject to change**** 

***Note: The Public is advised that there may be a quorum of Library Board Members in attendance as observers. No 
official action can or will be taken by the Library Board at this meeting. 

7:00 

7:10 

9:00
   

7:15
 

8:05 



LAKE ELMO CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  
 MARCH 18, 2014 

 
CITY OF LAKE ELMO 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
MARCH 18, 2014 

 
Mayor Pearson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  

PRESENT: Mayor Mike Pearson and Council Members Justin Bloyer and Mike Reeves.  

Also Present: City Administrator Zuleger, City Attorney Brekken, Community Development Director 
Klatt, City Engineer Griffin, Finance Director Bendel, and City Clerk Bell. 

PLEDGE OF ALLIGENCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Council Member Reeves asked that Item 14 be added to the agenda. 

MOTION: Council Member Reeves moved TO APPROVE THE MARCH 04, 2014 CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA AS AMENDED. Mayor Pearson seconded the motion.  MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

ITEM 1: ACCEPT MINUTES 

THE MARCH 04, 2014 CITY COUNCIL MINUTES WERE APPROVED AS PRESENTED BY 
CONSENSUS OF THE CITY COUNCIL.   

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

Council Member Bloyer: took the predictive index survey. He thought it was pretty amazing and was 
impressed with results. It was money well spent if it helps the staff. Council Member Reeves added that it 
identifies who we are and how we work. 

Mayor Pearson: attended gateway corridor meeting; attended Library Board meeting; attended 
County/City joint project for Lake Elmo Ave. reconstruction open house. He thanked church for 
accommodating the open house. Some comments were about connecting to sewer; held Meet the Mayor; 
attended bond request meetings. 

Council Member Reeves: attended Meet the Mayor and found it really interesting; Enjoyed the first 
episode of The Mayor Show; attended Parks Commission meeting on 3/17/14.  

Public Comments 

Library Director Linda Orsted spoke about the library. Spring break activities – train your brain. Working 
to get kids active as well as quiet time to search out favorite books; Will be screening Disney movie about 
Norway; have e-books available at library on two different platforms – Overdrive and Freading. To use, 
patron simply needs a library card from Lake Elmo Library; Library Board voted to change the 
reimbursement – still one card per household, but from any library system in MN. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve Payment of Disbursements and Payroll 
2. Accept Financial Report dated February 28, 2014 
3. Accept Building Report dated February28, 2014 
4. Approve League of MN Cities Insurance Trust Waiver Form – Annual Renewal  
5. Lake Elmo Sewer Infrastructure Improvements: I-94 to 30th St. – Pay Request No. 6. 
6. 2014 Seal Coat Project – Joint Services Agreement with Baytown Township 
MOTION: Council Member Bloyer moved TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA AS 
PRESENTED. Council Member Reeves seconded the motion.  MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

Page 1 of 5 
 



LAKE ELMO CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  
 MARCH 18, 2014 

 
ITEM 8: SCHILTGEN FARM PARCEL B SKETCH PLAN REVIEW. 

Community Development Director Klatt provided overview of the Schiltgen Farms North sketch plan 
submission. Explained the key issues that staff and the Planning Commission have identified as needing 
to be resolved prior to prelim plat. Mr. Klatt also explained the parkland, storm water retention, and open 
space discussions previously held.  

The proposed trails along with cul-de-sacs versus more grid-like planning were discussed. Mr. Klatt 
explained that the comp plan calls for more traditional style (grid-like) layout in the village area. Staff has 
asked for more direct route to connect the east and be in line with the village land use plan.  

The county’s concerns, including screening/berming on CSAH 17/Lake Elmo Ave. were noted. Both 
parks and planning commission have reviewed application. 

Mayor Pearson asked Mr. Griffin about traffic impact on street with various methods. Mr. Griffin noted 
that gridded does not necessarily mean straight roads. They can be curved and meandering. Important 
thing is to have connectivity. Connectivity benefits efficiency. 

Developer Dave Gonyea stated that they were open to idea of adding pocket park.  Council consensus was 
supportive of having something available to neighborhood. Mr. Gonyea addressed the county’s concerns 
for Lake Elmo Avenue and noted that addressing it is in his interest. He also noted that they are 
considering using theming fencing. Mr. Gonyea further addressed the through-road and his concerns 
regarding the increased traffic. 

Council Member Bloyer asked which lots were quickest to sell. Mr. Gonyea said road safety has an 
impact on which lots sell first. Families with kids prefer cul-de-sacs and not though roads. Mr. Gonyea 
also explained their approach to storm water management. 

Mr. Bloyer asked about price point. Homes will probably start at $450K to $600K. Houses across the 
street will be probably $500 to $750K due to larger lots. The architecture, density, and lot sizes were 
discussed.  

Mr. Gonyea asked for direction on the cut through road to the east. Council and staff discussed the 
benefits and concerns with connectivity and overall maintenance. Council consensus is in favor of a small 
neighborhood park and additional trail connections. 

No formal action taken. 

ITEM 9: ACCESSORY STRUCTURE ORDINANCE AMENDMENT; ORD. 08-104, RES. NO. 
2014-16 

Community Development Director Klatt explained the ordinance amendment proposal. It is a minor 
amendment. Mr. Klatt pointed out the changes that staff recommends are different than what the Planning 
Commission formally recommended regarding the side entry garages. 

Council Member Bloyer asked about attached garages and why they are included in accessory use 
structures. Mr. Klatt stated that because attached garages are subordinate to the main structure. The 
attached garage is considered an accessory use but not an accessory structure. 

MOTION: Mayor Pearson moved TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 08-104 AS AMENDED, 
REORGANIZING AND UPDATING THE CITY’S ACCESSORY STRUCTURE PROVISIONS 

Page 2 of 5 
 



LAKE ELMO CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  
 MARCH 18, 2014 

 
WITHIN THE ZONING CODE, AND FURTHER AMEND BY STRIKING “UNLESS THE 
GARAGE IS SIDE-LOADED” FROM § 154.456 B(1)(A),(B) AND § 154.508 B(1)(A),(B). Council 
Member Reeves seconded the motion.  

MOTION TO AMEND: Council Member Bloyer moved to AMEND EXEMPT STRUCTURE TO ADD 
#8 WATER ORIENTED STRUCTURES AS PERMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY 
SHORELAND STRUCTURES. Mayor Pearson seconded the motion.  MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

ORIGINAL MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

Mayor Pearson thanked staff for completing this item. 

MOTION TO AMEND: Mayor Pearson moved to ADOPT RESOLUTION 2014-16 TO ALLOW FOR 
SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE 08-104. Council Member Reeves seconded the motion.  
MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

ITEM 10: ACCESSORY 2013 INTERNAL LOAN REPAYMENT; RES. NO. 2014-17 

Finance Director Bendel provided an overview of the $200,000 internal loan repayment from the Village 
Fund to the General Fund.  

MOTION: Council Member Reeves moved TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2014-17, APPROVING 
AN INTERNAL LOAN FUND REPAYMENT, FROM THE VILLAGE FUND TO THE GENERAL 
FUND IN THE AMOUNT OF $200,000 EFFECTIVE DECEMBER 31, 2013. Council Member Bloyer 
seconded the motion. MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

ITEM 11: 39TH STREET NORTH: STREET AND SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS -
ACCEPT PETITION AND AUTHORIZE FEASIBILITY REPORT; RES. NO. 2014-18 

City Engineer Griffin provided overview of the proposed project. It was noted that the City has heard 
from 3 of the 5 property owners with interests in affected parcels. It was pointed out that if the project is 
not completed, the city will be liable for the feasibility study costs with no way to recoup. Owners have 
voiced desire to have the city contribute because the street is a higher used MSA road. Mr. Griffin 
explained the project schedule. It is aggressive due to the timing of some of the steps required through the 
429 petition process. A public hearing would be required if not 100% petition.  

Council Member Reeves asked about the amount at risk and the amount owners desire the City to 
contribute. The amount at risk is $9,400 for the feasibility study. An actual contribution amount has not 
been specified. Possible ranges of 10-30% have been discussed.  

MOTION: Council Member Reeves moved TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2014-18, DECLARING 
ADEQUACY OF PETITION AND ORDERING PREPARATION OF FEASIBILITY REPORT FOR 
THE 39TH STREET NORTH: STREET AND SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS, IN A NOT TO 
EXCEED AMOUNT OF $9,400. Council Member Bloyer seconded the motion. MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

ITEM 12: DOWNTOWN LAKE ELMO MARKET AREA PROFILE 

Community Development Director Klatt provided overview of the study. The study will involve local 
business owners and officials and give the city a market profile for the downtown. Anticipated staff time 

Page 3 of 5 
 



LAKE ELMO CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  
 MARCH 18, 2014 

 
involvement is unknown, but it is believed to be beneficial to staff. Council consensus is positive that the 
business owners are being involved. 

MOTION: Council Member Bloyer moved TO AUTHORIZE STAFF TO ENTER INTO AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA EXTENSION SERVICE TO 
COMPLETE A MARKET AREA PROFILE FOR LAKE ELMO IN A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT 
OF $750. Council Member Reeves seconded the motion. MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

ITEM 13: APPROVE WASHINGTON COUNTY MUNICIPAL WATER COALITION 
RESOLUTION; RES. NO. 2014-19 

City Administrator Zuleger gave an overview of the Washington County Municipal Water Coalition and 
its purpose. Mr. Zuleger also gave summary of the resolution itself. Council Member Reeves voiced his 
support for the resolution.    

MOTION: Mayor Pearson moved TO APPROVE RESOLUTION NO. 2014-19, TO ENTER INTO 
THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT REGARDING WATER SUPPLY. Council Member 
Reeves seconded the motion. MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

ITEM 14: APPROVE LASERFICHE RIO UPGRADE EXPENDITURE 

City Clerk Bell explained the background of the item and the reason for the timing of the item. This 
upgrade expense was not budgeted for in the 2014 budget due to the amount not being available until 
now. Roseville IT did not provide the proposal until just before the council meeting preparation. Roseville 
needs the agreement approved by 3/19. Clerk Bell also explained the benefits of the software. If the City 
were to purchase this software on its own, it would cost more than $20,000, so the benefit is great.  It was 
also pointed out that the use of this software is instrumental in the 2014 Plan of Work goal of reducing the 
use of paper. 

MOTION: Council Member Reeves moved TO APPROVE THE 2014 LASERFICHE RIO UPGRADE 
AND DEPLOYMENT AGENCY COST CONTRIBUTION. Council Member Bloyer seconded the 
motion. MOTION PASSED 3-0. 

SUMMARY REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  

City Administrator Zuleger: attended bonding bill meetings. Upcoming legislative hearing on bill on 
Thursday 8:45AM.; reported Washington County Board of Commissioners passed resolution in support 
of water funding; working on Joint Powers Agreement with school district for park; working on obtaining 
water security/letters of credit issues for Lake Elmo Ave. So far City has secured $1.3 million; City will 
be discussing joint services for utilities with Oakdale; commended Mike Bouthilet for his attending utility 
management seminar; Council transportation workshop is moved to April 8. The joint Planning/Council 
commission will now be in May.   

City Attorney Brekken: no report. 

Community Development Director Klatt: working on ordinance on commercial wedding venue; 
Planning Commission will be taking it up if the Council support moving forward. Council Member 
Reeves asked about the number of events cap. Mr. Klatt responded that it is based on Afton’s ordinance 
and applicant. Council consensus is that Planning Commission should go forward with item. Question 
was asked about what type event are involved. At this point, just ceremonies, but the Commission has 
discussed expanding it. The applicant has not indicated anything but ceremonies thus far.  

City Engineer Griffin: MS4 permit has been accepted and now posted for public review. Due to deep 
freeze this winter, road conditions will be poor this spring. Road restrictions will be enacted soon.  

Page 4 of 5 
 



LAKE ELMO CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  
 MARCH 18, 2014 

 
Finance Director Bendel: attended Finance Committee meeting. Still looking for two more members; 
audit follow-up work is continuing; working on sewer and water cash flows. 

City Clerk Bell: working on several HR issues including Predictive Index. Encourage the entire Council 
to take the survey; working on the 39th St 429 petition; CFL light bulbs obtained through the County 
recycling grant are available for residents to promote recycling. Notice will be in newsletter and on 
website;  

Mayor Pearson adjourned the meeting at 9:03 pm.  

LAKE ELMO CITY COUNCIL  
 
 
ATTEST:                                      
        ________________________________ 
        Mike Pearson, Mayor   
   
_______________________________ 
Adam R. Bell, City Clerk 

Page 5 of 5 
 



CITY OF LAKE ELMO 
 

NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK 2014 PROCLAMATION 
 
 
WHEREAS, libraries are the heart of their communities, campuses, and schools;  

WHEREAS; librarians work to meet the changing needs of their communities, including 
providing resources for everyone and bringing services outside of library 
walls;  

WHEREAS, libraries and librarian volunteers bring together community members to 
enrich and shape the community and address local issues; 

WHEREAS, librarians are trained, tech-savvy professionals, providing technology 
training and access to downloadable content;  

WHEREAS, libraries offer programs to meet community needs, providing residents with 
computer classes and financial planning services to both teens and older 
adults 

 
WHEREAS, libraries continuously grow and evolve in how they provide for the needs of 

every member of their communities;  

WHEREAS, libraries, librarians, library workers, and supporters across America are 
celebrating National Library Week. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that I Mike Pearson, Mayor of Lake Elmo 
proclaim April 13-19, 2014 as 

NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK 

I encourage all residents to visit the library this week to take advantage of the wonderful 
library resources available at your library. “Communities matter @ your library.” 

 
 
Signed this April 01, 2014                                        

 
________________________________ 

                                                                                     Mike Pearson, Mayor 
 



 
             MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
 
 
        DATE:    April 1, 2014 
        CONSENT    
        ITEM   #2 
        MOTION  
    

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Disbursements in the amount of $146,429.29 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Cathy Bendel, Finance Director 
 
THROUGH:  Cathy Bendel, Finance Director 
 
REVIEWED BY: Dean Zuleger, City Administrator 
 
 
SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

- Introduction of Item .............................................................. City Administrator 

- Report/Presentation…………………………………………City Administrator 

- Questions from Council to Staff ............................................. Mayor Facilitates 

- Call for Motion ............................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Discussion ....................................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Action on Motion .................................................................... Mayor Facilitates 
 
 
POLICY RECOMMENDER:  Finance 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   $146,429.29 
 
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:  As part of its Consent Agenda, the City Council 
is asked to approve disbursements in the amount of $146,429.29.  No specific motion is needed 
as this is recommended to be part of the Consent Agenda. 
 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: NA 
 
 
 
 
 

 -- page 1 -- 



City Council Meeting  [Consent Agenda Item 2]  
April 1, 2014   
 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/STAFF REPORT:  The City of Lake Elmo has the 
fiduciary responsibility to conduct normal business operations.  Below is a summary of current 
claims to be disbursed and paid in accordance with State law and City policies and procedures.   
 

Claim # Amount Description 

ACH $        9,442.16 Payroll Taxes to IRS & MN Dept of Revenue  3/20/14 

ACH $        6,086.04 Payroll Retirement to PERA 3/20/14 

DD5406-DD5431 $      28,597.70 Payroll Dated (Direct Deposits) 3/20/14 

41120-41152 $    101,823.39 Accounts Payable 4/01/14 

 2330-2337 $           480.00        Library Card Reimbursement 4/01/14 

           

   
   

   

TOTAL          $    146,429.29  
  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the aforementioned, the staff recommends the City Council 
approve as part of the Consent Agenda the aforementioned disbursements in the amount of $. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1.   Accounts Payable – check registers 

-- page 2 -- 

























 
             MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
 
        DATE:    April 1, 2014 
        CONSENT    
        ITEM #  3 
            
AGENDA ITEM: 2014 Seal Coat Project – Resolution No. 2014-20 Approving Plans and 

Specifications and Ordering Advertisement for Bids 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Ryan Stempski, Assistant City Engineer 
 
THROUGH:  Dean A. Zuleger, City Administrator 
 
REVIEWED BY: Jack Griffin, City Engineer 
  Mike Bouthilet, Public Works 
  Cathy Bendel, Finance Director 
 
 
SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda): 

- Questions from Council to Staff ............................................. Mayor Facilitates 

- Public Input, if Appropriate………………………………….Mayor Facilitates 

- Call for Motion ............................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Discussion ....................................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Action on Motion .................................................................... Mayor Facilitates 
 
 
POLICY RECOMMENDER:  Engineering. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
The total estimated project cost for the 2014 Seal Coat Project is $213,000. The project will be 
paid through the Infrastructure Reserve Fund (Fund No. 409). Approval of this resolution does not 
commit the council to the project costs. Once contractor bids are received, the actual construction costs 
will be known and the council will be asked to consider entering into a contact to complete the work. 
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
The City Council is respectfully requested to consider approving, as part of the Consent Agenda, 
Resolution No. 2014-20, thereby approving the plans and specifications and ordering the 
advertisement for bids for the 2014 Seal Coat Project. If removed from the consent agenda, the 
recommended motion for this action is as follows: 
 
“Move to approve Resolution No. 2014-20, thereby approving the plans and specifications and 

ordering the advertisement for bids for the 2014 Seal Coat Project.” 

 -- page 1 -- 



City Council Meeting  [Consent Agenda Item 3]  
April 1, 2014   
 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY/BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
 
In accordance with the annual street maintenance program, the City Council ordered, on 
February 18, 2014, the preparation of plans and specifications for the 2014 Seal Coat Project. In 
addition, the City Council approved a Joint Service Agreement with West Lakeland Township 
and a Joint Service Agreement with Baytown Township as part of a shared services arrangement 
to pursue this work in a more cost effective manner. Through a shared services arrangement, the 
fixed costs for the design, obtaining bids, and administering construction is shared between each 
community, thereby lowering the overall costs. In addition, by combining the City and Township 
projects together, staff hopes to promote a more competitive bid environment that may result in a 
reduced unit price to lower each community’s respective construction costs. 
 
The combined project includes the plans and specifications to seal coat approximately 8 miles of 
streets in Lake Elmo (see attached Project Location Map), 2 miles of streets in West Lakeland 
Township and 1.7 miles of streets in Baytown Township. A project schedule is attached.  With 
the approval of Plans and Specifications, the bids would be presented to council for award at the 
May 20, 2014 council meeting. The work is scheduled to be substantially complete by July 18, 
2014 and has a final completion date of August 22, 2014. 
 
West Lakeland and Baytown will reimburse Lake Elmo for the portion of the work completed on 
their Township roads in accordance with the project Joint Service Agreements. Each Township 
will also be reimbursing the City $3,000 for the administration and engineering services 
associated with the project, and they will be directly responsible for the construction oversight 
for the work completed on their respective roadways. 
 
In 2013, the City completed a crack seal project for these city street segments in preparation of 
this year’s seal coat application. The 2014 Seal Coat Project now provides the design documents 
for seal coating these same street segments to complete the maintenance process. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff is recommending that the City Council consider approving, as part of the Consent Agenda, 
Resolution No. 2014-20, thereby approving the plans and specifications and ordering the 
advertisement for bids for the 2014 Seal Coat Project. If removed from the consent agenda, the 
recommended motion for this action is as follows: 
 
“Move to approve Resolution No. 2014-20, thereby approving the plans and specifications and 

ordering the advertisement for bids for the 2014 Seal Coat Project.” 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Resolution No. 2014-20 
2. 2014 Seal Coat Project Location Map 
3. Project Schedule 

-- page 2 -- 



CITY OF LAKE ELMO 
WASHINGTON COUNTY 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-20 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND 

ORDERING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS  
FOR THE 2014 SEAL COAT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to a motion passed by the City Council on the 18th day of 

February, 2014, FOCUS Engineering, Inc. has prepared plans and specifications for the 2014 
Seal Coat Project and has presented such plans and specifications for approval. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED,  
 

1. Such plans and specifications, a copy of which is on file at Lake Elmo City Hall and 
made a part hereof, are hereby approved. 
 

2. The City Clerk shall prepare and cause to be inserted in the official paper an 
advertisement for bids upon making of such improvements under such approved plans 
and specifications.  The advertisement shall be published for at least 21 days, shall 
specify the work to be done, and shall state that sealed bids provided to the City Clerk 
prior to the specified bid date and time and accompanied by a bid bond or cashier’s check 
made payable to the City of Lake Elmo in an amount not less than 5% of the amount of 
such bid will be considered 

 
ADOPTED BY THE LAKE ELMO CITY COUNCIL ON THE FIRST DAY OF APRIL 
2014.  
       CITY OF LAKE ELMO 
 
        

By: __________________________ 
  Mike Pearson 
 Mayor 
(Seal) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Adam Bell 
City Clerk 

Resolution No. 2014-20 1 



DOWNS
LAKE

LAKE JANE
HILL PARK

LAKE ELMO
REGIONAL

PARK RESERVE

TARTAN
PARK

GOLF CLUB

LAKE 
ELMO

LAKE JANE

SUNFISH 
LAKE

OLSON
LAKE

LAKE DEMONTREVILLE

CLEAR
LAKE

HORSESHOE
LAKE

ROSE
LAKE

REID
PARK

VFW
PARK

LIONS 
PARK

31ST ST N

32ND ST N

LA
VE

RN
E

CT
 N LA
YT

ON
CT

 N

30TH ST CIR N

30TH ST N

TANA RIDGE
PARK

LE
GI

ON
 AV

E 
N

LIS
BO

N 
AV

E 
N

LISBON 
CT N

LISBON
AVE NLA

NS
IN

G
AV

E N
24T

H ST N

24TH ST
CT N

LA
KE

 EL
MO

 AV
E N

20
TH

 ST
CT

 N

20TH ST N

LE
GI

ON
 AV

E 
N

LEGION
LN CIR N LEGION

LN CT N
21ST
ST N

LE
GI

ON
AV

E N

MA
NN

ING
TR

L N

12TH ST N

LA
YT

ON
AV

E N

LA
VE

RN
E

AV
E N

LE
EW

AR
D

AV
E N11TH

ST N

14TH ST N

MA
NN

IN
G 

AV
E N

City of Woodbury

STONEGATE
PARK

KRAMER
LAKE

GOOSE
LAKE

ARMSTRONG
LAKE

RIDGE
PARK

EAGLE POINT 
BLVD

HUDSON BLVD

JULEP 
AVE N

9TH ST N

JULEP
CT N

JEWELAVE N

JASMINE 

AVEPL N

10
TH

 ST
LN

 N

10TH ST N

WHISTLING
VALLEY RD

WHISTLING
VALLEY TRL

10
TH

 ST
CT

 N

KE
AT

S A
VE

 N

LA
KE

 EL
MO

 AV
E N

3RD STREET
PL N

15TH ST N

15TH ST CT
IVORY CT

16TH
ST N

IVO
RY

 AV
E 

N

21TH ST N

22ND ST N
21ST
ST N

22ND
CT N

EAGLE POINT
LAKE

TABLYN
PARK

HEIGHTS
PARK
26TH ST N

27TH ST N

IM
PE

RI
AL

AV
E N

IN
NS

DA
LE

AV
E N

IRONWOOD
TRL N

28TH
ST N

27TH
ST N

IR
ISH

 
AV

E N

27TH ST
CT N

STILLWATER BLVD N

IN
NS

DA
LE

AV
E N

31ST ST N

JA
ML

EY
 AV

E N

28TH
ST N

JONQUIL
TRL N

JO
NQ

UI
L

AV
E N

JAMACA 
CT N

ID
EA

L A
VE

 N

38TH ST N

39TH ST N

IN
NS

DA
LE

AV
E N

36TH ST N
37TH ST N

IR
WI

N
AV

E N

35TH ST N

IRISAVE N 

37TH 
AVE

35TH
ST N

IR
ISH CT
 N

IR
VIN

E
CI

R 
N

ISL
E 

AV
E NLAKE JA

NE
TR

L N

JA
MA

CA
 AV

E N

LAKE
JANE
HILLS
PARK

PEBBLE
PARK

LAKE JANE
TRL N

IR
VIN

E
CT

 N

IVY
CT N

42ND
ST N

DE
ER

 PO
ND

TR
L NJA

CK
 PI

NE
TR

L N

DE
ER

PO
ND

 CT
N

WINDBREAK TRL N

HID
DE

N
BA

Y T
RL

 N

HIDDEN BAY
TRL N

BIR
CH

BA
RK

TR
L N

City of 
Oakdale

West 
Lakeland
Township

Baytown 
Township

City of
Oak Park
Heights

City of GrantCity of
Pine Springs

59th ST N

HIGHLANDS

TRL N

HILLTOP
AVE N

53RD
ST N

DEMONTREVILLE

TRL CIR N

HILL TRL N

50TH ST N

HILL TRL N

HI
GH

LA
ND

S
TR

L N

HIGHLANDS
CT N

HY
TR

AIL
AV

E N

DEMONTREVILLE
WILDLIFE PARK

DEMONTREVILLE
PARK

55TH ST N

JA
MA

CA
AV

E N

ISL
E 

AV
E N

JA
MA

CA
 AV

E N
JANERD N

49TH
ST

JA
SP

ER
 AV

E 
N

JAMACA

BLVD N

JEROME
AV

E N

KLEIS
PARK

CARRIAGE
STATION
PARK

39TH ST N

LA
YT

ON
AV

E N

LA
VE

RN
E

36TH ST

35TH ST

34TH ST

UPPER    33RD ST N

33RD ST N

32ND ST N

KR
AF

T
CI

R 
N

LA
MP

ER
T

AV
E N LA

NG
LY

CT
 N33RD

ST LN N

KL
ON

DI
KE

 AV
E N

STILLWATER LN N

KE
LV

IN
AV

E N

KELVINCT N

43RD ST N
KIRKWOOD

AVE

KINDRED
WAY

KINDRED
CT

TA
PE

ST
RY

HI
LL

TAPESTRYBEND

TAPESTRY TRL

47TH ST N

KIM
BR

O 
AV

E 
N

LA
KE

 EL
MO

 AV
E N

50TH ST N

KIR
KW

OO
D 

AV
E N

KE
AT

S A
VE

 N

58TH ST N

56TH ST N

58
TH

 C
T N MA

NN
IN

G
AV

E N

LIN
DE

N
AV

E NLILYAVE N

MARQUESS
LN N

MARQUESS

TRL N

MA
RQ

UE
SS

TR
L C

T N
MA

RQ
UE

SS
TR

L C
IR 

N

55TH ST N

LIN
DE

N 
TR

L N

LARKSPUR
LN N

LIL
AC

 LN
 N

44TH ST
LN N

44TH ST N

BLUESTEM LN NLIL
Y A

VE
 N

LIL
Y A

VE
 N

LILAC PL N

LILAC WAY N

51ST ST S

55TH ST

53RD ST N

57TH ST N

JU
LE

P
WAY

JU
LE

P
AV

E N

JA
NE

CIR
 N

ISL
E

CT
 N

BL
UE

-
ST

EM
 

TR
L N

MA
RQ

UE
SS

 
LN

 C
V 

N

MA
RQ

UE
SS

 
WA

Y N

KIN
DR

ED
WA

Y

JEROME

AVE CT N

OLSON LAKE

TRL N

HUDSON BLVDHUDSON BLVD

10TH ST N

HUDSON
BLVD

IN
WO

OD
 AV

E 
N

IN
WO

OD
 AV

E 
N

SUNFISH LAKE
PARK

HIDDENBAYCT N CHERRY-
WOOD
TRL N

JANE
RD N

DE
MONT

RE
VIL

LE
TR

L N

59th ST N

55
TH

 ST
 N

JANECT N

47TH ST N

50TH ST N

STILLWATER BLVD N

LA
KE

 EL
MO

 AV
E N

AV
E

BLUESTEM

CIR N
LITTLE

LITTLE
BLUESTEM

CIR N

LINDEN
TRL N

ST
ILL

WA
TE

R
BL

VD
 N

50TH ST N

60TH ST N

LA
KE

 EL
MO

 AV
E N

57
TH

 ST
CI

R

57TH ST

57
TH

 ST
 C

V N

60TH ST N

59TH ST CT N 59TH ST N

KE
LV

IN
AV

E N

60TH ST N
DE

MO
NT

RE
VIL

LE
TR

L N

50TH ST N

LIBSON

AVE N

30TH ST N

10TH ST N

MA
NN

IN
G 

AV
E N

10TH ST N

15TH ST N IVO
RY

AV
E N

City of
Oak Park
Heights

City of
Stillwater

Stillwater
Township

City of
Afton

34TH ST N

KlondikeAve N

STILLWATER BLVD N

TAPESTRY TRL

TAPESTRY
TRL

TAPESTRY
GR

JULEPAVE N

STILLWATER BLVD N

HOMESTED
PARK

HELMO AVE N

MANNING AVE N

40TH ST N

N

1 62

121110

13
1415

22 23 24

34

98

5

17 16

2120

29 28 27 26

33 34 35 36

25

7

18

19

30

3132

HERITAGE
PARK

VERONICA
POND

GOETSCHEL'S
POND

Union Pacific Railroad

Union Pacific Railroad

TablynPark

Eagle PointCreek Estates

Lake ElmoHeights

Torre Pines

Farms ofLake Elmo

ParkviewEstates

WildflowersShores
HuppertAdd

BeautCrest Estates FriedrichHghts

KenridgeAdd

Prairie RidgeOffice Park

Eagle PointBusiness Park

Stonegate

Hammes CountryVista

WhistlingValley

Midland Meadows

DavidNelson Est

TheHomestead

TartanMeadows

The Forest

Schwartz-Martinco Add

PackardPark
EdenPark

Heritage
Farm

LonesomePine Add

DownsLake Est

MyronEllman

Elmo View

LIS
BO

N
AV

E N

Cty AudPlat No. 8

Lake ElmoPark

Brookman Add

Sunfish Ponds

Hamlet OnSunfish LakeParkMeadows

Tapestry AtCharlottes' Grove

Berschen's Shores
DawcinAcres

LakeJaneHighlands
TealPass Est

Fox FireEstates

Meyer'sPineridge

KrausesAdd

Springborn'sGreen Acres

Arabian Hills

JudithMaryManor
Lake Elmo Vista

Rolling Hills Est

Prairie Hamlet

HiddenMeadowsOf Lake Elmo

Jesse'sHideaway

DiscoverCrossing

Arvold'sAcres

St. Croix'sSanctuary

TamarackFarm Est

CarriageStation

TanaRidge
John M DayFarm Add

The Fields ofSt. Croix2nd Add

The Fieldsof St. Croix

BluestemAt The Fieldsof St. Croix

BurrwoodEstBergmannAdd
DemontrevilleHighlands Add

Lane's DemontrevilleCountry ClubDemontrevilleHighlands Add

Olson Lake Add
Oace AcresAdd

LakeJaneHills

Lake JaneManor No. 1

ThreeLakesFarm Add

Bordners Garner
Farmettes

MANNING TRL

;

¤
Station
No. 2

Ì

¤ Station
No. 1

å
Lake Elmo
Elementary

Oak-Land
Junior High

Skyview Community
Middle School

Skyview Community
Elementary

Eagle Point
Elementary

2013 CRACK SEAL PROJECT LOCATION MAP
0 0.3 0.60.15

Miles

4

Lake Elmo Airport

Parcels

City Parks
Golf Course
Lake Elmo Regional 
Park Reserve

Subdivisions

Lakes

Park Office
651/430-8368

;
City Hall
3800 Laverne Avenue N
651/777-5510
www.lakeelmo.org

Ì Public Works Building
3445 Ideal Ave N
651/233-5414¤ Fire Stations
Station No. 1
3510 Laverne Ave N
651/770-5006
Station No. 2
4259 Jamaca Ave N
651/779-8882

n

CardinalRidge

CardinalView

Map Date: SEPTEMBER 2013

Created By:

Schools

å

å

å

å

2013 CRACK SEAL

Frank
Text Box
February 2014

Frank
Text Box
2014 SEAL COAT

Frank
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by Frank

Frank
Text Box
2014 SEAL COAT PROJECT LOCATION MAP



CITY OF LAKE ELMO 
2014 SEAL COAT PROJECT 

PROJECT NO. 2014.118 
 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
 
February 18, 2014 Council orders preparation of Plans and Specifications. 

April 1, 2014 Presentation of Plans and Specifications. Council Approves 
Plans and Specifications and Orders Advertisement for Bids. 

April 5, 2014 Placement of Advertisement for Bids. 
  –Oakdale-Lake Elmo Review. Publication on April 9 
 – Quest CDN. Publication on April 2 

May 1, 2014 Receive Contractor bids. 

May 20, 2014 City Council accepts bids and awards Contract. 
 
May 23, 2014 Process and send out Contract Documents. 
 
June 6, 2014 Receipt of Contractor’s Bonds/Legal Review. 
 
June 10, 2014 Conduct Pre-Construction Meeting and Issue Notice to 

Proceed.  
 
June 11, 2014 Contractor begins Work. 
 
July 18, 2014 Substantial Completion of Work (including sweeping of excess 

aggregate).  
 
August 22, 2014 Final Completion of Work (including Punchlist and final 

documentation). 



 
             MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
 
 
        DATE:   April 1, 2014 
        CONSENT    
        ITEM #4 
            
AGENDA ITEM: Family Means CUP Amendment 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Nick M. Johnson, City Planner 
 
THROUGH:  Dean Zuleger, City Administrator 
 
REVIEWED BY: Planning Commission 
  Kyle Klatt, Community Development Director 
 
 
SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda): 

- Introduction of Item .....................................Community Development Director 

- Report/Presentation………………………...Community Development Director 

- Questions from Council to Staff ............................................. Mayor Facilitates 

- Call for Motion ............................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Discussion ....................................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Action on Motion .................................................................... Mayor Facilitates 
 
 
POLICY RECCOMENDER:  The Planning Commission and Staff recommend approval of the 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Amendment request by Family Means to construct a community 
center in the Cimarron Manufactured Home Park.  The community center will allow Family 
Means to provide expanded and improved programming to youth in Cimarron Park, providing a 
service that will benefit the greater Lake Elmo community. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None – All City review costs were recuperated through the required 
application fee 
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:  The City Council is asked to approve a CUP 
Amendment request by Family Means to construct a community center in the Cimarron 
Manufacture Home Park as part of the Consent Agenda. The community center will be utilized 
to provide expanded after-school and summer programming to youth ages 6-18 in Cimarron 
Park.  The Planning Commission held a public hearing on 3/24/14 and unanimously 
recommended approval of the request. 
  

 -- page 1 -- 



City Council Meeting  [Consent Agenda Item 4]  
April 1, 2014   
 

The Planning Commission and Staff are recommending that the City Council approve the CUP 
Amendment request as part of the Consent Agenda.  If removed from the Consent Agenda, the 
CUP Amendment request can be approved through the following motion: 
 

“Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014-21, approving the Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
request by Family Means to allow for the construction of a community center in the Cimarron 

Manufactured Home Park.” 
 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY/PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT:  
 
The Cimarron Manufactured Home Park was approved by the Town of East Oakdale in 1967 via 
Special Use Permit (Attachment #6).  As part of the approval of the manufactured home park, 
various accessory uses that would be permitted in the future were also identified in the approval. 
Community centers were identified as one of the permitted accessory uses.  As Cimarron Park 
proceeded with various accessory uses, such as the golf course, the City processed the request as 
a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Amendment.  Following this established procedure, Family 
Means requesting an amendment to Cimarron Park’s CUP to proceed with the construction of the 
community center.  To provide further clarification, it should be noted that Special Use Permits, 
which were common during this time period, have now been replaced by CUPs procedurally. 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the CUP amendment request at its meeting 
on 3/24/14. No one spoke in favor or against the request. The Planning Commission voiced their 
support of the project.  After discussing a few questions related to parking and programming, the 
Planning Commission unanimously recommended the CUP Amendment request for approval 
(Vote: 5-0). 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION (SWOT): 
 

Strengths: Allowing for the construction of a community center allows the Family 
Means organization the expanded space and facilities to improve after-school and 
summer programming for youth in Cimarron Park and the greater Lake Elmo community. 

Weaknesses: None   
 
Opportunities: Family Means currently operates after-school and summer programming 
in the existing clubhouse of Cimarron Park.  Allowing for the construction of the 
community center will allow Family Means to serve a larger population of youth, as well 
as provide expanded and improved programming for the population. 
 
Threats: None 

 
 
 
 
 

-- page 2 -- 



City Council Meeting  [Consent Agenda Item 4]  
April 1, 2014   
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the aforementioned, the Planning Commission and Staff are recommending that the 
City Council approve the CUP Amendment request as part of the Consent Agenda.  If removed 
from the Consent Agenda, the CUP Amendment request can be approved through the following 
motion: 
 

“Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014-21, approving the Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
request by Family Means to allow for the construction of a community center in the Cimarron 

Manufactured Home Park.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2014-21 

2. Planning Commission Report, 3/24/14 

3. Location Map 

4. CUP Application Form and Narrative 

5. Community Center Plan Sets 

6. Cimarron Park Special Use Permit 

7. CUP Required Findings (§154.106.A) 

-- page 3 -- 



 
CITY OF LAKE ELMO 

WASHINGTON COUNTY 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-21 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 

ALLOW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A COMMUNITY CENTER WITHIN THE CIMARRON 
MANUFACTURED HOME PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo is a municipal corporation organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of Minnesota; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Family Means, 1875 Northwestern Avenue, Stillwater, MN (“Applicant”) has 
submitted an application to the City of Lake Elmo (the “City”) for a Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
to allow the construction of a community center for the purpose of providing after-school and summer 
programming to children between the ages of 6 and 18 within the Cimarron Manufactured Home Park 
(901 Lake Elmo Avenue North, Lake Elmo, MN); and 
 
 WHEREAS,  notice has been published, mailed and posted pursuant to the Lake Elmo Zoning 
Ordinance, Section 154.102; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission held a public hearing on said matter on 
March 24, 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission submitted its report and recommendation 
concerning the Conditional Use Permit Amendment request to the City Council as part of a Staff 
Memorandum dated April 1, 2014; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the City Council considered said matter at its April 1, 2014 meeting. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based on the testimony elicited and information received, the City 
Council makes the following: 
 

FINDINGS 
 

1) That the procedures for obtaining said Conditional Use Permit (CUP) are found in the Lake Elmo 
Zoning Ordinance, Section 154.106. 

 
2) That all the submission requirements of said Section 154.106 have been met by the Applicant. 
 
3) That the proposed Conditional Use Permit Amendment is to allow the construction of a 

community center to serve youth in the Cimarron Manufactured Home Park as more fully 
described in application materials submitted to the City. 
 

4) That the proposed Conditional Use Permit Amendment will apply to leased property legally 
described in Exhibit A. 

 
5) That a community center is a permitted accessory use per the approved Special Use Permit for the 

Cimarron Manufactured Home Park.  
 

Resolution No. 2014-21 



6) That the proposed use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, 
convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood or the city. 
 

7) That the proposed use conforms to the City of Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan. 
 

8) That the proposed use is compatible with the existing neighborhood. 
 

9) That the proposed use will be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be 
compatible in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and will 
not change the essential character of that area. 
 

10) That the proposed use will not be hazardous or create a nuisance as defined under this Chapter to 
existing or future neighboring uses. 
 

11) That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, 
including streets, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewer 
systems and schools or will be served adequately by such facilities and services provided by the 
persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 
 

12) That the proposed use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public 
facilities and services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 
 

13) That the proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare 
because of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 
 

14) That vehicular approaches to the property, where present, will not create traffic congestion or 
interfere with traffic on surrounding public thoroughfares. 
 

15) That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural or scenic 
feature of major importance. 
 

 
CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION 

 
Based on the foregoing, the Applicants’ application for a Conditional Use Permit Amendment is granted. 
 
Passed and duly adopted this 1st day of April by the City Council of the City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota. 
 
 
 
 
  ____________________________________  
   Mike Pearson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________  
Adam Bell, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 

 

2 
Resolution No. 2014-21 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
DATE: 3/24/14 
AGENDA ITEM:  4A – PUBLIC HEARING   
CASE # 2014-13 

 
 
ITEM:   Family Means Conditional Use Permit Amendment 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nick Johnson, City Planner 
 
REVIEWED BY: Kyle Klatt, Community Development Director 
   Jack Griffin, City Engineer 
   Rick Chase, Building Official 
   Greg Malmquist, Fire Chief 
 
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:    
The Planning Commission is being asked to hold a Public Hearing to review an amendment to the 
Conditional Use Permit for the Cimarron Manufactured Home Park. The proposed amendment to the 
CUP is to allow for the construction of a 4,000 square-foot youth center to serve as an accessory use 
to the existing manufactured home park.  The youth center will be run by the Family Means 
organization to accommodate after-school and summer programming for young residents of 
Cimarron between the ages of 6-18.  Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission 
recommend approval of the CUP amendment request. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
Applicant:  Family Means (Arba-Della Beck); 1875 Northwestern Avenue, Stillwater, MN 

55082 

Property Owners: Equity Lifestyle Properties, Inc. (Kate Yunke); 901 Lake Elmo Avenue North, 
Lake Elmo, MN 55042 

Location: Part of Sections 36, Township 29 North, Range 21 West in Lake Elmo, 
immediately east of Lake Elmo Avenue (CR-17) and immediately south of 10th 
Street (CSAH 10).  PID Number: 36.029.21.21.0001. 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Amendment 

Existing Land Use: Manufactured Home Park w/various accessory uses 

Existing Zoning: MDR – Urban Medium Density Residential 

Surrounding Land Use: North – gasoline station and neighborhood convenience store, and Tartan 
Meadows rural single family neighborhood; west – Midland Meadows 
rural single family neighborhood; south – vacant land guided for Urban 
Medium Density Residential (MDR) and Business Park (BP); east – 
Oakland Jr. High School and vacant/agricultural land guided for Urban 
High Density Residential (HDR).   

PUBLIC HEARING 4A – ACTION ITEM  
 



2 
 

Surrounding Zoning: RS – Rural Single Family (west and north); CC – Convenience 
Commercial (north); RT – Rural Development Transitional District 
(south and east) 

Comprehensive Plan: Urban Medium Density Residential 

History: Property was given approval through a Special Use Permit to operate a manufactured 
home park in 1967.  As part of the approval for the manufactured home park, various 
accessory uses were also permitted, including a golf course, utility buildings, and a 
community center.  As the park proceeded with the construction of the various 
accessory uses, such as the golf course in 1988, the City processed that additional 
uses via a Conditional Use Permit.  Therefore, the proposed community center related 
to the Family Means youth programs is being processed as an amendment to 
Cimarron Park’s existing Conditional Use Permit. It should be noted Special Use 
Permits have been replaced by Conditional Use Permits in current land use law or 
best practice.   

Deadline for Action: May 1, 2014 (60 day time deadline per State Statute)    
 
Applicable Regulations: §154.106 Conditional Use Permits 
  
 

REQUEST DETAILS 
The City of Lake Elmo is in receipt of a proposed amendment to the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
for the Cimarron Manufactured Home Park.  The CUP amendment has been submitted by Family 
Means, a non-profit organization that runs after-school and summer programming for youth in the 
Cimarron Manufactured Home Park.  Family Means currently runs similar programming inside the 
existing clubhouse and office of Cimarron Park.  However, due to a lack of space (900 square feet) 
within the existing facilities, the applicants have noted that they are unable to expand programming 
in Cimarron Park to provide a greater variety of programs and services.  Due to this limitation, 
Family Means is proposing to construct a 4,000 square-foot youth center in the southeast corner of 
the existing parking lot that serves the clubhouse and office. As guided by the established procedure 
of adding other accessory uses to the manufactured home park in the past, the proposed use requires 
an amendment to Cimarron’s existing CUP.  

 

BACKGROUND 

The building proposed by Family Means is intended to increase capacity for after-school and summer 
programming for youth within the Cimarron manufactured home park. Family Means is currently 
providing some programming within a 900 square-foot space in the basement of the existing 
clubhouse/office of Cimarron Park.  However, as stated in the provided narrative, they would like to 
expand their capacity and programming to serve greater numbers of youth with expanded activities.  
The proposed youth center would allow them to accomplish these goals.  The applicants first met 
with staff in 2012 to discuss this proposal.  At the meeting, staff instructed the applicants that the 
review of the youth center would be processed as an amendment to their existing CUP (formerly 
Special Use Permit).  As instructed by staff, the applicants are now moving forward with their 
proposal by submitting an application for an amendment to the existing CUP.  

The applicant’s submission to the City includes the following components: 

PUBLIC HEARING 4A – ACTION ITEM 
 



3 
 

• Narrative.  The attached narrative includes a general overview of the project with additional 
background information regarding the organization and the intended use of the structure. The 
structure will have a teen area and a children’s area, as well as additional space for quiet 
study, computer stations and a commercial grade kitchen.  The applicants have noted that 
there is adequate parking for the facility with 108 total parking spots at the end of 
construction. In addition, the narrative provides important details about how the structure will 
be served by the domestic sanitary sewer and water systems within Cimarron Park.  Finally, 
it is noted that the project will result in an overall reduction in the amount if impervious 
surface.  

• Lease Agreement.  Family Means have entered into a 30-year lease agreement with Equity 
Lifestyle Properties, Inc., the owners of Cimarron Park, to lease the area needed for the 
construction of the new youth center.  In addition, the lease also provides access to common 
areas surrounding the building, including the dedicated parking spots for the facility.  

• Plan Sets   

o Lease Description Sketch. The sketch includes a description of the area to be leased 
for the youth center, as well as information relating to existing conditions and 
topography. 

o Grading, Drainage, Erosion Control and Utility Plan w/Details. The grading and 
utility plan shows the proposed grading as well as the proposed utility connections.  
The sanitary sewer service for the building will connect to the existing 6” service line 
for the clubhouse and office.  The proposed water service will be connected via a 6” 
service line on the northern side of the structure.  The plan also show a proposed rain 
garden on the east side of the site to address updated conditions related to drainage 
and storm water runoff.  It is the City’s understanding that the applicant has prepared 
the submitted plan in coordination with the Valley Branch Watershed District. 
Finally, the plan includes measures to address erosion and sediment control. 

o Landscape Plan. The Landscape Plan includes the species and location of a variety of 
plantings proposed for the site.  The plan includes 6 trees and multiple varieties of 
shrubs and perennials. Upon review of the City’s landscape ordinance, Staff found 
the proposed landscape plan to be consistent with the City’s requirements. 

o Building Plans and Elevations. The applicants have provided elevations from the 
south and west sides of the proposed youth center, as well as the out or storage 
building. Building plans are also provided, showing how the interior space will be 
utilized in the youth center. 

o Site Plan Sketch.  The Site Plan Sketch shows consistent information that supports 
the other documents in the plan sets. The sketch also demonstrates how the resulting 
parking lot will be striped in order to accommodate adequate parking facilities.  The 
sketch and narrative note that 108 parking stalls will result from the redesign.  
However, when counting the stalls on the sketch, staff counted 95 parking stalls.  
Staff would request that the applicant verify the final number of parking stalls in 
advance of the building permit being approved.   

In reviewing the submitted materials, staff has determined that the applicants have provided a 
complete and thorough application to review the proposed amendment to Cimarron’s CUP.  In order 
to further review the proposed use, staff reviewed the application in accordance with the City’s 

PUBLIC HEARING 4A – ACTION ITEM 
 



4 
 

ordinance pertaining to conditional use permits.  In addition, staff did review the history of the site to 
better understand how to process the request. 

 

STAFF REVIEW COMMENTS: 
In terms of the history of the manufactured home park, Cimarron Park was granted a Special Use 
Permit by the Town of East Oakdale in 1967 (Attachment #4).  As part of this approval, various 
accessory uses were identified that could be constructed accessory to the manufactured home park at 
a later date.  These accessory uses included a nine-hole golf course and a community center/office.  
In reviewing this application, staff has determined that the proposed youth center is an accessory use 
that is consistent with the original approval of the park.  It should be noted that cities no longer issue 
special use permits, as these types of approvals have been replaced by conditional use permits 
(CUPs).  
 
In reviewing the proposed amendment to the CUP, staff reviewed the request according to the 
required finding of the City’s CUP Ordinance.  The required findings include 12 findings that relate 
to minimizing potential impacts or nuisances associated with the proposed use.  For the convenience 
of the Planning Commission, staff has provided the 12 required findings in Attachment #5. In 
reviewing the 12 required findings for granting a conditional use permit, or an amendment to that 
permit in this case, staff has found that the proposed use meets all of the required findings.  In the 
judgment of staff, the proposed use is an expansion of a use that is currently occurring within the 
Cimarron clubhouse/office that will positively impact the community.  In addition, there are no 
nearby land uses in close proximity that would be negatively impacted by the construction of the 
youth center in this location.  After reviewing the required findings, staff finds that the proposed use 
would not conflict with the City’s requirements for granting an amendment to the existing 
Conditional Use Permit. For these reasons, staff is recommending that the Planning Commission 
recommend approval of the proposed amendment to the CUP.  To facilitate the review by the 
Planning Commission, staff can address any questions related to specific findings if needed. 
 
The Fire Chief also reviewed the proposed youth center.  The site will contain a fire hydrant in close 
proximity, and the structure will be sprinkled. The Fire Chief also wanted to know whether or not the 
facility could serve a dual purpose as an additional storm shelter in cases of extreme weather.  Staff 
will follow up with the applicants and representatives of the manufactured home park to discuss any 
possibilities.  
 

RECCOMENDATION: 
Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed 
amendment to the Conditional Use Permit for the Cimarron Manufactured Home Park to allow the 
construction of a 4,000 square-foot youth center through the following motion: 

“Move to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit Amendment submitted by Family 
Means to allow for the construction of a 4,000 square-foot youth center at the Cimarron 

Manufactured Home Park” 
 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Location Map 

PUBLIC HEARING 4A – ACTION ITEM 
 



5 
 

2. Application Form & Narrative 
3. Youth Center Plan Sets 
4. Cimarron Park’s Approved Special Use Permit 
5. CUP Required Findings (§154.106.A)  

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

- Introduction ........................................................................................ Planning Staff 

- Report by Staff ................................................................................... Planning Staff 

- Questions from the Commission ............................ Chair & Commission Members 

- Open the Public Hearing .................................................................................. Chair 

- Close the Public Hearing .................................................................................. Chair 

- Discussion by the Commission .............................. Chair & Commission Members 

- Action by the Commission ..................................... Chair & Commission Members 

PUBLIC HEARING 4A – ACTION ITEM 
 



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Data Scource: Washington County, MN
3-19-2014

Location Map: Family Means CUP Amendment

K

456717

456710

Project Location
901 Lake Elmo Ave N

0 400 800200 Feet

1"=400'

Cimarron Manufactured
Home Park

10th St N

Lake Elmo Ave N





City of Lake Elmo 
3800 Laverne Avenue North 
Lake Elmo, MN  MN 55042 
03/03/2014  
REVISED  -03/18/14 
 
Application for Conditional Use Amendment:   
Cimarron Community Building    901 Lake Elmo Avenue North, Lake Elmo, MN 55042 
 
Cimarron Park  
Equity LifeStyle Properties, Inc. 
Kate Yunke, Property Manager 
901 Lake Elmo Avenue North, Lake Elmo, MN 55042 
651-436-6188 
 
Owners/Lessees:   
Arba-Della Beck, President 
FamilyMeans 
1875 Northwestern Avenue 
Stillwater, MN 55082 
651-439-4840 
 
Architect: 
Brian Larson, AIA 
Larson Architects, LLC 
807 N. 4th Street 
Stillwater MN 55082 
651-430-0056 
 
 
Project Background 
 
FamilyMeans is a private nonprofit social services agency founded in 1963 by Stillwater area 
community leaders.   Their Youth Development Initiative provides on-site after-school and 
summer enrichment programs for Cimarron children and teens. FamilyMeans has 20 years of 
experience providing high quality youth programs.  Local law enforcement and Equity LifeStyle 
Properties (ELS) management have publically credited their Cimarron program as instrumental in 
reducing juvenile crime within the community. 

The Cimarron youth programs have outgrown their existing space, located in the basement of the 
Cimarron golf clubhouse and business office.  This 900 square-foot space limits the number of 
youth who can participate, as well as the variety of programming that can be offered.   
 
FamilyMeans and ELS have entered a 30-year lease agreement, allowing FamilyMeans to 
construct a new  4,000 sf one-story building and 500 sf outbuilding at the south end of the 
Cimarron clubhouse parking lot. The larger building will support and allow for the growth of 
Cimarron’s youth programming. Youth currently have the opportunity to explore art, science, 
music, sports, cooking and computer skill-building in an open free-choice environment.  
Expanded summer programming offers a soccer club, bike program and entrepreneurial garden 
project. Activities also include field trips and community service efforts. Help with school work is 
available daily, and teens explore post-secondary education options.   
 
 
 
 



 
Project Narrative 
As noted above, the proposed Cimarron Community Center building is located near the 
community entrance and existing offices and golf clubhouse.  The new building and its yard 
occupy one end of an existing parking lot adjacent to existing playground and court areas, and 
are a short distance from the offices and  the community pool.  With its rear yard greenspace, the 
project  reduces the overall impervious area of the site, and its location allows shared use of the 
existing parking lot.  When striped as indicated, the remaining parking lot could provide 108 
parking spaces ( including the 15 spaces needed for this new facility) . The plans have been 
developed in consultation and with support from the ELS/Cimarron local staff, who have 
concluded that this number of spaces will be more than adequate for all parking needs. 
 
The main building is a gable-roofed, slab-on-grade wood-framed structure with porches on both 
sides. Adjacent to the main building is an outbuilding with a seasonal bike shop and storage 
areas for outdoor recreation.  The two buildings form edges to an outdoor play area bounded on 
the remaining sides by a earth berm and the playground areas. 
 
The main building’s plan is symmetrical, with a teen area and a children’s area on each side 
separated by a movable wall partition .  Each side has its separate entrance from the parking 
lot/drop-off area to the north, as well as direct access to the outdoor play area to the south.  In the 
center of the building are large activity multi-use spaces , with high (12’-0” ) ceilings. The center 
movable wall partition can be folded into a pocket, allowing the entire center area to be opened 
for special events.  There are also quiet rooms to the south, facing the play yard, for study, art or 
small group activities.  A central commercial-grade kitchen will be used for preparing food and for 
teaching purposes.   On both the north and south sides of the building there are outdoor porches 
protecting entrances and providing space for small gatherings out of the elements. 
 
The site development of the building and yard will result in removal of some existing parking , and 
a net gain in pervious green space.  As part of the reconfiguration of parking lot stormwater 
systems,  a raingarden/bioswale is proposed that can help infiltrate and treat stormwater runoff 
from site and building. Smaller nearby raised bed gardens may be constructed to support the 
program’s gardening and produce initiative. 
 
A new 6” PVC line sanitary sewer service for the new building will be connected to the existing 6” 
sanitary sewer line running from the existing clubhouse/office building to the sanitary main in the 
street. Most of the usage from toilets, sinks, kitchen and other wastewater will be simply 
transferred from the program’s current use in the existing building to the new building.  Any 
increase in usage from the new facility should easily be accommodated: according to the Chris 
Chvala, Cimarron Utility Director, the Cimarron wastewater treatment facility has an average flow 
of  72,000gal. with a capacity of 120,000 gal.   The water service to the new building will via a 
new 4” line connected to the existing water service near an adjacent fire hydrant. Chris Chvala 
indicated that water pressure in this area is good, with few other sites using the existing 6” main 
in the street.  Once a sprinkler contractor is engaged, water flow rates at the site will be verified.   
 
Summary 
The primary use of the proposed new Community Building for after-school and summer programs 
(currently housed by the existing clubhouse) appears to conform and be compatible with uses in 
the immediate area.  Its scale, appearance and character differentiates enough to provide its own 
identity, but is also compatible with the existing office/clubhouse and the surrounding  residential 
neighborhood.  No additional parking will need to be created, with the existing parking lot 
providing all of the spaces needed.  The overall net impervious surface area will decrease as a 
result of this project, with the addition of green space in the rear yard.    
 
 

















































 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
 
All applications for Conditional Use Permits in the City of Lake Elmo shall be reviewed according to the 
following required findings (§154.106.A): 
 
1. The proposed use will/will not be detrimental to or endanger public health, safety, comfort, convenience or 

general welfare of the neighborhood or city because:____________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. The use or development does/does not conform to the City of Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan because: ____ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

3. The use or development is/is not compatible with the existing neighborhood because: __________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

4. The proposed use does/does not meet all specific development standards for such use listed in  
Article 7 of the Zoning Ordinance because:____________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
5. If the proposed use is in a flood plain or shoreland area, the proposed use does/does not meet all specific 

standards for such use in §150.250-257 (Shoreland Ordinance) and Chapter 152 (Flood Plain Management) 
because: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

6. The proposed use will/will not be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be compatible in 
appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and will/will not change the 
essential character of the area because: _______________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

7. The proposed use will/will not be hazardous or create a nuisance as defined under this Chapter to existing or 
future neighboring structures because: ________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

8. The proposed use will/will not be served by adequate public facilities because: ________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

9. The proposed use will/will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities 
and services and will/will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community because: _________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



2 
 

10. The proposed use will/will not include excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors 
because: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

11. Vehicular approaches to the property will/will not create traffic congestion or interfere with traffic on 
surrounding public thoroughfares because: ____________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

12. The proposed use will/will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural or scenic feature of 
major importance because: _________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Revised 3-20-14 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Lease Parcel Legal Description: 
 
That part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 36, Township 29 North, Range 21 West, 
Washington County, Minnesota described as follows: 
 

Commencing at the northwest corner of said Section 36; thence South 00 degrees 02 minutes 
38 seconds West, bearing oriented to the Washington County Coordinate System, NAD83, 
1986 adjustment, along the west line of said Section 36 a distance of 743.74 feet; thence 
South 89 degrees 57 minutes 22 seconds East 494.61 feet to the point of beginning; thence 
North 54 degrees 22 minutes 43 seconds East 120.59 feet; thence South 39 degrees 34 
minutes 29 seconds East 162.16 feet; thence South 43 degrees 32 minutes 36 seconds West 
62.70 feet; thence South 28 degrees 50 minutes 23 seconds West 62.70 feet; thence North 70 
degrees 27 minutes 11 seconds West 24.26 feet; thence North 35 degrees 32 minutes 39 
seconds West 180.68 feet to the point of beginning, containing 0.52 acres, more or less. 

 



 
             MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
 
 
        DATE:   April 1, 2014 
        CONSENT    
        ITEM #   5 
        ORDINANCE 08-105  
    
AGENDA ITEM: Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Nick M. Johnson, City Planner 
 
THROUGH:  Dean Zuleger, City Administrator 
 
REVIEWED BY: Planning Commission 
  Kyle Klatt, Community Development Director 
 
 
SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda): 

- Introduction of Item .....................................Community Development Director 

- Report/Presentation………………………...Community Development Director 

- Questions from Council to Staff ............................................. Mayor Facilitates 

- Call for Motion ............................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Discussion ....................................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Action on Motion .................................................................... Mayor Facilitates 
 
 
POLICY RECCOMENDER:  The Planning Commission and Staff recommend repealing the 
Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance to improve operational efficiently and remove 
redundant and unnecessary provisions related to the review of building permits for permitted 
uses on pre-existing platted lots. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None  
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:  The City Council is asked to consider repealing 
the Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance as part of the Consent Agenda.  The ordinance 
contains outdated information and requirements related to landscaping, storm water management 
and other provisions that no longer apply.  In addition, it presents procedural inefficiencies that 
are not common amongst other communities.  
  
The Planning Commission and Staff are recommending that the City Council repeal the Site and 
Building Plan Review Ordinance as part of the Consent Agenda.  If removed from the Consent 
Agenda, the ordinance can be repealed through the following motion: 
 

 -- page 1 -- 



City Council Meeting  [Consent Agenda Item 5]  
April 1, 2014   
 

“Move to adopt Ordinance 08-105, repealing the Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance.” 
 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY/PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT:  
 
In the judgment of staff, the Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance was originally adopted to 
ensure adequate plan preparation and orderly development in Lake Elmo.  However, now that the 
City’s Zoning Code and other ordinances have since been updated, many provisions in the 
ordinance are now redundant or unnecessary.  From a procedural standpoint, the ordinance 
(subsection B) requires the Planning Commission and City Council to review development or 
construction proposals for permitted uses on pre-existing platted lots.  From a comparison 
perspective, this requirement is atypical in other communities, where Planning Commission and 
City Council review is only required for instances of platting, land subdivision and conditional 
uses.  Now that the City has adopted the Design Guidelines and Standards Manual, staff now 
recommends processing building permits for permitted uses on platted lots administratively, as is 
the typical practice in most cities.  Repealing the Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance 
would allow the City to proceed with growth of the community in a more efficient manner. 

The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed action at its meeting on 3/24/14. There was 
minimal discussion of the proposed action.  The Planning Commission unanimously 
recommended that the ordinance be repealed (Vote: 5-0). 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION (SWOT): 
 

Strengths: Removing redundant and unnecessary provisions in the City Code helps 
avoid confusion, making the process more straightforward for the applicant. In addition, 
processing building permits for permitted uses on platted lots administratively allows the 
City to be operationally efficient.  Operational efficiency is important during a growth 
phase. 

Weaknesses: None   
 
Opportunities: The proposed action provides the City the opportunity to remove 
redundant and unnecessary provisions from the City Code, allowing for better 
communication with the applicant/taxpayer.  In addition, repealing the ordinance allows 
the City to process building permits for permitted uses on platted lots administratively, 
improving operational efficiency.  
 
Threats: Requiring Planning Commission and City Council review of all building 
permits for permitted uses on platted lots adds additional workload to these bodies.  In 
addition, requiring Planning Commission and City Council review for permitted uses on 
platted lots is not common amongst other communities, putting Lake Elmo at a 
competitive disadvantage in some cases. 

 
 
 

-- page 2 -- 



City Council Meeting  [Consent Agenda Item 5]  
April 1, 2014   
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the aforementioned, the Planning Commission and Staff are recommending that the 
City Council repeal the Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance as part of the Consent Agenda. 
If removed from the Consent Agenda, the ordinance can be repealed through the following 
motion: 
 
“Move to adopt Ordinance 08-105, repealing the Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance.” 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance 08-105 

2. Planning Commission Report, 3/24/14 

3. Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance 

-- page 3 -- 



CITY OF LAKE ELMO 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 08-105 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LAKE ELMO CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY 
REPEALING OUTDATED PROVISIONS RELATED TO SITE AND BUILDING PLAN REVIEW 

 
 
SECTION 1.  The City Council of the City of Lake Elmo hereby amends Title XV: 
Land Usage; Chapter 151: Building Regulations, by repealing City Code Section 
151.070 in its entirety. 
 

SECTION 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption and publication in the official newspaper of the City of Lake Elmo. 

 

SECTION 3.  Adoption Date.  This Ordinance 08-105 was adopted on this first day of 
April 2014, by a vote of ___ Ayes and ___ Nays. 

 
  
 
 
 
 LAKE ELMO CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
  ______________________________  
 Mike Pearson, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 _______________________________  
Adam Bell, City Clerk 
 
 
This Ordinance 08-105 was published on the ____ day of ___________________, 2013. 
 

1 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
DATE: 3/24/14 
AGENDA ITEM:  5B – BUSINESS ITEM 
CASE # 2014 - 19 

 
 
ITEM:   Zoning Text Amendment – Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nick Johnson, City Planner 
 
REVIEWED BY: Kyle Klatt, Community Development Director  
 
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:    
The Planning Commission is being asked to review the Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance.  
Staff is recommending to strike the ordinance with the intent of improving operational efficiency by 
administratively processing construction projects for permitted uses on existing platted lots. This 
recommendation is based upon the fact that the City has a full-time administrative, planning, 
engineering and building staff who are able to process these requests administratively.  In addition, 
the newly adopted design review process should aid staff in the review of building permits for 
permitted uses on existing platted lots.  The requested action does not require a public hearing, as the 
ordinance is not located in the Zoning Code.  Staff is recommending that the ordinance be struck.  

 

REQUEST DETAILS 
City staff has been working on an updating the Zoning Code and other Code sections to prepare for 
what is anticipated to be a busy growth phase for the community. In order to improve operational 
efficiency in advance of this growth period, staff is proposing to strike the Site and Building Plan 
Review Ordinance.  The main reason to strike the ordinance relates to Section B, which reads the 
following: 
“(B) Review of Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator shall review the site and building plans for 
the purpose of determining their compliance with this section and other applicable city ordinances. The 
Zoning Administrator shall have 60 days in which to complete the review of the site and building plans. 
During the same 60-day period, the Council and Planning Commission shall also review the site and 
building plan and refer the plan to other city staff for review for the same purpose.” 
 
Per the required procedure established under this ordinance, permitted uses on pre-existing platted 
lots also have to be reviewed by the Planning Commission and City Council.  When reviewing this 
procedure compared to other communities, this requirement can only be described as atypical. In 
staff’s judgment, this ordinance language is likely remnant when the City did not have a full-time 
planning, building and engineering staff to review the construction projects in the community.  In 
addition, now that the City has developed and adopted a design review process, staff is more 
prepared to assume the responsibility of processing these types of requests administratively.  To be 
clear, staff would only process construction projects administratively in cases where the proposed use 
was a permitted use under the City’s Zoning Code, and the property is a pre-existing platted lot. In a 
significant proportion or majority of development projects, some platting or land subdivision will be 
required.  In addition, applicants proposing a use that under the City’s Code is a conditional use will 
always be required to apply for a conditional use permit, which addresses many of the uses that have 

BUSINESS ITEM 5B 
 



2 
 

potential impacts or nuisances associated with them.  Both of these processes require a public 
hearing.  It is only in cases where the proposed use is permitted and the lot is already platted where 
the staff administrative review would occur. 
 
In addition to the improving operation efficiency component, there are other provisions within this 
ordinance that are no longer applicable.  For example, the City has adopted new landscaping 
provisions and requirements.  Therefore, the landscaping provisions within the Site Plan Review 
Ordinance are no longer necessary. Other requirements included in the ordinance, such as lighting, 
surveys, building plans, storm water management plans and other requirements are already addressed 
by other ordinances and by the City’s building permit process.  In other words, the Site Plan Review 
Ordinance is currently outdated and only adds additional unnecessary review.  Staff would 
recommend striking this ordinance to improve efficiency and reduce confusion. 
 
As stated in the summary, the proposed action does not require a public hearing because the 
ordinance is not in the City’s zoning code.  Staff is bringing the proposed action before the Planning 
Commission because it does relate to land use and development.  Now that the City’s design review 
process is in place, staff recommends proceeding with removing this ordinance to improve 
operational efficiency. 
 

RECCOMENDATION: 
Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission recommend striking the Site and Building Plan 
Review Ordinance (§151.070) through the following motion: 

“Move to recommend striking the Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance.” 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Site and Building Plan Review Ordinance (§151.070) 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

- Introduction ........................................................................................ Planning Staff 

- Report by Staff ................................................................................... Planning Staff 

- Questions from the Commission ............................ Chair & Commission Members 

- Discussion by the Commission .............................. Chair & Commission Members 

- Action by the Commission ..................................... Chair & Commission Members 

BUSINESS ITEM 5B 
 



Print

Lake Elmo, MN Code of Ordinances

§ 151.070  SITE AND BUILDING PLAN REVIEW. 

   (A)   Information required.  Except has hereinafter provided, every person, before 
commending construction or alteration of a structure, shall submit to the Zoning Administrator 
the following documents and information:

      (1)   A survey drawing by a registered engineer or land surveyor showing pertinent existing 
conditions, accurately dimensioned;

      (2)   A complete set of preliminary drawings prepared by an architect, landscape architect, 
engineer, or planner showing:

         (a)   An accurately scaled and dimensioned site plan indicating parking layout including 
access provisions, designation of locations of principal and accessory buildings, landscaping, in 
conformance with the zoning code and division (A)(3) below;

         (b)   Fences or walls or other screening, including height and type of material in 
conformance with Chapter 1500 and the zoning district regulations;

         (c)   Lighting provisions, type, and location;

         (d)   Curbs;

         (e)   Building elevations, sections, and outline specifications, including material proposed;

         (f)   Existing and proposed land elevations in 2 foot contours, drainage provisions, and 
utility provisions as may be required, including water, sewer, drainfield, lake shore, flood plain, 
airport or environmental overlay districts; and

         (g)   Existing limitations imposed by zoning.

      (3)   Landscaping and screening plan.

         (a)   Complete landscaping, screening, and erosion control plans shall be prepared and 
signed by a professional landscape architect or professional site planner with educational training 
or work experience in land analysis and site plan preparation.  These plans shall include:  

            1.   Detailed natural land analysis, including vegetation, soil types, and slopes;

            2.   Man-made features (berms, fences, and the like);

            3.   Details of all proposed vegetative landscaping materials including:  placement, Latin 
name/common name, caliper/height, and quantity;

            4.   Details of proposed non-vegetative landscaping materials; and

            5.   Planning and construction schedule for completion of landscaping and screening 
plans.

Page 1 of 2CHAPTER 151: BUILDING REGULATIONS

3/20/2014http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx



         (b)   The final landscaping and screening plan must be approved by the Council/engineer at 
the time of the site plan review.

         (c)   The plan for landscaping shall include ground cover, bushes, shrubbery, trees, 
sculpture, fountains, decorative walks, or other similar site design features or materials in a 
quantity having a minimum value in conformance with the following table:

Project Value (Including building construction, 
site preparation, and site improvements)

Percentage of Total Project Value to 
Be Allocated to Landscaping

Below $1,000,000 2%
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1 and 3/4%
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 1 and 1/2%
$3,000,001 to $4,000,000 1 and 1/4%
Over $4,000,000 1%

         (d)   All landscaping must be guaranteed for 2 growing seasons, with a bond or security .

      (4)   A Storm Water Management Plan and/or and Erosion and Sediment Control Plan as 
required in § 150.273.

   (B)   Review of Zoning Administrator.  The Zoning Administrator shall review the site and 
building plans for the purpose of determining their compliance with this section and other 
applicable city ordinances.  The Zoning Administrator shall have 60 days in which to complete 
the review of the site and building plans.  During the same 60-day period, the Council and 
Planning Commission shall also review the site and building plan and refer the plan to other city 
staff for review for the same purpose.

(Am. Ord. 9764, passed - -)

   (C)   Exceptions.  The following types of construction or alteration are exempt from the site 
and building plan review provisions of this section:

      (1)   The construction or alteration of a single or double family detached dwelling and 
buildings accessory thereto; and

      (2)   The construction or alteration of any building where the Building Inspector estimates 
that the total cost of the construction or alteration will not exceed $2,500, provided that in no 
event shall buildings be constructed or altered in violation of the Uniform Building Code or city 
ordinances.

(1997 Code, § 520.01)  (Am. Ord. 08-024, passed 4-20-2010)  Penalty, see § 10.99

Page 2 of 2CHAPTER 151: BUILDING REGULATIONS

3/20/2014http://www.amlegal.com/alpscripts/get-content.aspx



 
             MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 
 
 
        DATE:   April 1, 2014 
        REGULAR    
        ITEM #6 
        RESOLUTION NO. 2014-022 
 
    
AGENDA ITEM: Horning Lot Size Variance – Lot 9 of Krause’s Addition 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Kyle Klatt, Community Development Director 
 
THROUGH:  Dean Zuleger, City Administrator 
 
REVIEWED BY: Planning Commission 
  Nick Johnson, City Planner 
 
 
SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

- Introduction of Item .....................................Community Development Director 

- Report/Presentation………………………...Community Development Director 

- Questions from Council to Staff ............................................. Mayor Facilitates 

- Call for Motion ............................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Discussion ....................................................................... Mayor & City Council 

- Action on Motion .................................................................... Mayor Facilitates 
 
 
POLICY RECCOMENDER:  The Planning Commission considered an application for a lot 
size variance at its March 24, 2014 meeting.  The Commission is recommending approval with 
the draft findings and conditions of approval as specified in Resolution 2014-022. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  N/A – if the parcel were considered a buildable lot, the City would have 
collected an assessment for the subject lot as part of a recent road project.  The Planning 
Commission is recommending that the applicant pay a fee in lieu of this dedication at the time a 
building permit is issued for the site. 
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City Council is being asked to consider a 
request from Suzanne Horning (as Trustee of the Suzanne R.W. Horning Trust) for a variance 
that would classify Lot 9 of Krause’s Addition to Lake Elmo as a buildable lot.  The lot currently 
does not meet the City’s minimum lot size for a lot of record in a RS – Rural Single Family 
Residential Zoning District.  The applicant has also requested a variance from Section 154.017 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, which states that any variance granted by the City “shall expire if work 

 -- page 1 -- 



City Council Meeting  [Regular Agenda Item 6]  
April 1, 2014   
 

does not commence within 12 months of the date of the granting of the variance.  The applicant 
has asked that the 12-month time limit be waived for this request. 
 
The suggested motions to adopt the Planning Commission recommendation is as follows: 
 

“Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014-22 approving a Variance from the minimum lot size 
requirements in a RS District and the maximum time for which a variance is valid.” 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY/PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT:  The attached staff 
report to the Planning Commission provides an overview of the request and the draft findings 
that have since been slightly modified by the Planning Commission.  The Commission conducted 
a public hearing concerning the variance at its March 24, 2014 meeting and received the 
following comments from neighboring property owners: 
 

• Christine Cirilly, representing the applicant, stated that the applicant has been paying 
property taxes on the property as a building lot since 1985.  She noted that the applicant 
intends to build a home that is consistent with the character of the neighborhood. 
 

• Greg Zeipelt, 4940 Jamaca Avenue North, stated that, prior to purchasing his house 
immediately to the north of the applicants lot, he had been informed this lot was not 
buildable.  He discussed the existing drainage in the neighborhood, and pointed out that 
drainage has gotten worse since the 2012 road project. 
 

• Bill and Valerie Brass, 8930 Jane Road North, expressed concern about setting a 
precedence for allowing building on other substandard lots in the neighborhood.  They 
also expressed concern about drainage in the area, and noted that the eastern portion of 
their lot collects water that drains from the subject property. 
 

• Jason Brash, 9030 Jane Road North, explained that he recently moved to Lake Elmo and 
chose it for the open space and large lots.  He encouraged the Planning Commission to 
keep it this way. 

 
The Planning Commission generally discussed the drainage around the site; Staff responded that 
the City Engineer has been out to look at this area, but ultimately found that the water is draining 
to a low area in the neighborhood that has been previously designated as a ponding area.  The 
Commission recommended the addition of two conditions of approval and asked that an existing 
condition be modified to require that any future construction on the site not exacerbate the 
existing drainage situation in the neighborhood. 
 
The Planning Commission adopted a motion to recommend approval of the variance request with 
the findings and conditions as noted in the attached Resolution 2014-021.  This resolution 
includes the conditions as revised and recommended by the Planning Commission.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION (SWOT): 

-- page 2 -- 



City Council Meeting  [Regular Agenda Item 6]  
April 1, 2014   
 

 
Strengths • The Planning Commission found that the applicant met the 

City’s four variance criteria. 
• The variance will allow the applicant to build on a lot that has 

previously been considered buildable by the City. 

Weaknesses • The City will need to track this variance to ensure the five-year 
deadline is met. 

Opportunities • The variance will allow the current and past tax assessment for 
the property to match the classification as a buildable lot. 

Threats • The neighbors in attendance at the public hearing expressed 
concern over the existing drainage situation on the lot and the 
loss of open space in the neighborhood. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission is recommending that the City Council 
approve the request from Suzanne Horning (as Trustee of the Suzanne R.W. Horning Trust) for a 
variance that would classify Lot 9 of Krause’s Addition to Lake Elmo as a buildable lot and to 
allow the variance to remain valid for longer than one year subject to conditions.  The suggested 
motion to adopt the Planning Commission recommendation is as follows: 
 

“Move to adopt Resolution No. 2014-22 approving a Variance from the minimum lot size 
requirements in a RS District and the maximum time for which a variance is valid.” 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2014-022 
2. Planning Commission Staff Report – 3/24/14 
3. Application and Project Narrative 
4. Existing Site Conditions/Survey 
5. Location Map 
6. Krause’s Addition Plat 
7. Septic System Report – Tom Trooien 

 

-- page 3 -- 



 
 
 
 

CITY OF LAKE ELMO 
WASHINGTON COUNTY 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
RESOLUTION 2014-022 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A VARIANCE FROM THE MINIMUM LOT SIZE 

REQUIREMENT IN A RS DISTRICT AND FROM THE MAXIMUM TIME FOR WHICH A 
VARIANCE IS VALID 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo is a municipal corporation organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of Minnesota; and 
  

WHEREAS, Suzanne Horning (as Trustee), 8991 Jane Road North, (the “Applicant”) 
has submitted an application to the City of Lake Elmo (the “City”) for a variance from the 
minimum lot size requirements in the RS – Rural Single Family Residential zoning district and 
to waive the one-year deadline for completion of the work proposed under the variance; and 

 
WHEREAS,  notice has been published, mailed and posted pursuant to the Lake Elmo 

Zoning Ordinance, Section 154.109; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission held a public hearing on said matter 

on March 24, 2014; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission has submitted its report and 
recommendation to the City Council as part of a Staff Memorandum dated April 1, 2014; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered said matter at its April 1, 2014 meeting. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, based on the testimony elicited and information received, the 
City Council makes the following: 
 

FINDINGS 
 

1) That the procedures for obtaining said Variance are found in the Lake Elmo Zoning 
Ordinance, Section 154.109. 

 
2) That all the submission requirements of said Section 154.109 have been met by the 

Applicant. 
 
3) That the proposed variance includes the following components: 

 

Resolution 2014-022 1 



a) A variance from the minimum lot size requirements in the RS – Rural Single 
Family Residential zoning district.  The subject lot is 0.785 acres in size and the 
minimum required size to be buildable is 0.9 acres. 
 

b) A variance to waive the one-year deadline for completion of the work proposed 
under the variance. 

 
4) That the Variance will be located on property legally described as follows: Lot 9 of 

Krause’s Addition to the City of Lake Elmo, Washington County, Minnesota.  PID 
09.029.21.11.0015. 

  
5) That the strict enforcement of Zoning Ordinance would cause practical difficulties and 

that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted 
by an official control.  Specific findings: That the proposed use is reasonable because 
the lot was platted as a buildable parcel and all other parcels of similar size have had 
houses constructed on them since the subdivision was approved.  The property is very 
close to meeting the required 0.9 acre minimum lot size requirement, and construction 
of a home on this lot will not be any more obstructive than structures built on lots 
meeting the 0.9 acre requirement.  The applicant also purchased the lot at the time it 
was a buildable parcel.  The applicant has demonstrated the ability to install a 
complaint septic system on the property.  A five year deadline for construction of a 
home on the property is a reasonable period of time for this work to be completed. 

 
6) That the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 

created by the landowner.  Specific findings: That the applicant’s property is unique 
due to former platting of this property as a buildable lot and continued classification of 
the property as buildable since the lot was subdivided.  The applicant purchased the 
property with the understanding that a house could someday be built on the property, 
and City records indicate that the lot was indeed buildable at the time of purchase.  
Other homes on neighboring smaller lots were constructed prior to the adoption of the 
City’s zoning regulations. 
 

7) That the proposed variance will not alter the essential character of the locality in which 
the property in question is located.  Specific findings: The applicant’s lot is larger than 
several of the lots in the surrounding neighborhood and is close to the minimum size 
needed to be considered buildable.  The lot is of sufficient size to allow the installation 
of a compliant septic system and to allow the placement of a home on the parcel 
consistent with neighboring structures. 
 

8) That the proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to property 
adjacent to the property in question or substantially increase the congestion of the public 
streets or substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood. 
Specific findings: No impacts above and beyond those considered normal for any other 
single-family lot in the surrounding neighborhood would be expected should the 
variance be granted. 
 

Resolution 2014-022 2 



 
CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION 

 
Based on the foregoing, the Applicant’s application for a Variance is granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1) The driveway for the future home of the lot shall access Jane Road North.  Driveway 
access to Jamaca Avenue North shall be prohibited. 
 

2) The applicant shall provide a drainage easement for the portion of the lot that collects 
storm water runoff from the subject property and adjacent parcels prior to the issuance of 
a building permit for the site.  The specific location of the drainage easement shall be 
approved by the City Engineer. 

 
3) The variance shall be valid for a period of five years, but may be renewed upon review 

and approval by the Board of Adjustment. 
 

4) A grading, erosion control, and storm water management plan shall be submitted in 
conjunction with a building permit for the property.  This plan shall not exacerbate any 
existing drainage issues and must be designed to mitigate any additional runoff from any 
future construction on the site. 

 
5) The applicant shall secure any required permits from the Valley Branch Watershed 

District prior to commencing any grading or construction activity on the site. 
 

6) The applicant shall submit a letter from Washington County that an approved septic 
system can be located on the site prior to the issuance of a building permit for the site. 
 

7) The owner shall pay a fee comparable to the assessments levied against other homes in 
the neighborhood for the 2012 Jane Road North road project that shall be collected at the 
time a building permit is issued for the site. 

 
 

Passed and duly adopted this 1st day of April 2014 by the City Council of the City of Lake Elmo, 
Minnesota. 
 
 
  __________________________________ 
   Michael Pearson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________  
Adam Bell, City Clerk 
 

Resolution 2014-022 3 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
DATE: 3/24/14 
AGENDA ITEM:  4B – PUBLIC HEARING 
CASE # 2014-08 

 
 
ITEM: Horning Lot Size Variance – Krause’s Addition, Lot 9 
   
SUBMITTED BY: Kyle Klatt, Community Development Director 
 
REVIEWED BY: Nick Johnson, City Planner 
     
 
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:    
The Planning Commission is being asked to consider a request from Suzanne Horning (as Trustee of 
the Suzanne R.W. Horning Trust) for a variance that would classify Lot 9 of Krause’s Addition to 
Lake Elmo as a buildable lot.  The lot currently does not meet the City’s minimum lot size for a lot of 
record in a RS – Rural Single Family Residential Zoning District.  The applicant has also requested a 
variance from Section 154.017 of the Zoning Ordinance, which states that any variance granted by 
the City “shall expire if work does not commence within 12 months of the date of the granting of the 
variance.  The applicant has asked that the 12-month time limit be waived for this request. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
Applicant:  Briggs and Morgan (Christine Cirilli), 2200 IDS Center, 80 South 8th Street, 

Minneapolis, MN acting on behalf of: 

 Suzanne Horning (Trustee), 8991 Jane Road North 

Property Owners: Suzanne and Robert Horning Trust, 8991 Jane Road North 

Location: Lot 9 of Krause’s Addition to Lake Elmo.  PID Number 09.029.21.11.0015 

Request: Variance – Lot Size and Time Limit for Completion 

Existing Land Use: Vacant parcel, prior recreation use (tennis courts) accessory to 8991 Jane 
Road North 

Existing Zoning: RS – Rural Single Family 

Surrounding Land Use: Single family residential 

Surrounding Zoning: RS – Rural Single Family 

Comprehensive Plan: Rural Single Family 

Proposed Zoning: No Change 

History: Krause’s Addition was platted in 1963.  The home at 8991 Jane Road North (across 
the street and also owned by the applicant) was constructed in 1979.  The City 
granted a lot size variance for the subject property in 1985, but no home was ever 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 4B – PUBLIC HEARING 
 



2 
 

built on the site.  A permit to install a tennis court on the subject property was 
approved later in 1985. 

Deadline for Action: Application Complete – 2/3/14 
 60 Day Deadline – 4/3/14 
 Extension Letter Mailed – No 
 120 Day Deadline – 6/3/14 
 
Applicable Regulations: 154.450 – RS – Rural Single Family Residential Zoning District 
 154.109 – Variances (Administration and Enforcement) 
 150.250 – Shoreland Overlay District 
 

REQUEST DETAILS 
The City of Lake Elmo has received a request from Briggs and Morgan, PA acting on behalf of 
Suzanne Horning, for a variance from the minimum lot size requirements in the RS – Rural Single 
Family Residential zoning district.  The application also includes a request for the City to waive the 
one-year deadline for completion of the work proposed under the variance.  In this case, the applicant 
has requested that the variance be granted without a deadline so that a home could be built on the lot 
at an unspecified time in the future.  The applicant is therefore not proposing to construct any 
buildings on the property, and is instead seeking a variance to classify the lot as a buildable parcel in 
advance of any specific building plans for the property. 

The lot under consideration is 0.785 acres (34,195 square feet) in size and the minimum lot size 
within the RS – Rural Single Family Residential zoning district is 1.5 acres.  As an existing lot of 
record, otherwise known as a lot that was platted prior to the City’s zoning regulations becoming 
effective, this property would be considered buildable if it met 60% of the district’s minimum lot 
size.  The applicant would therefore need at least 0.9 acres (39,204 square feet) for this lot to be 
considered buildable under the current zoning regulations. 

The site is currently occupied by a tennis court that was built in the mid-1980’s, and has served as an 
accessory use to the home located at 8991 Jane Road North.  Should the variance be approved, the 
applicant intends to convey the lot to her children as a buildable lot, although she has not provided 
any specific time frame for a home to be constructed.  The application materials include a septic 
system analysis documenting that a system compliant with Washington County septic regulations 
may be constructed on the property.  For the purposes of this report, the septic designer assumed that 
a new home would be built on the same area presently occupied by the tennis court. 

In addition to the above-referenced septic report, the applicant has provided a detailed project 
narrative with an analysis of the required variance findings.  The applicant has also provided a 
detailed survey of the lot showing the existing topography, drainage patterns, tree cover, and 
improvements that are currently situated on the property.  There are no specific site development 
plans, and any future construction on this property will need to comply with the City’s zoning and 
subdivision requirements (with the exception of minimum lot size should the variance be granted). 

 

BACKGROUND 
The lot that is the subject of the variance request is part of Krause’s Addition to the City of Lake 
Elmo, which was platted in 1963 when this area was still part of East Oakdale Township.  The 
attached copy of the plat shows that the lot is the same size as it was when originally subdivided.  It 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 4B – PUBLIC HEARING 
 



3 
 

likely would have been considered buildable up to the incorporation of the area into the City of Lake 
Elmo and the adoption of City zoning regulations in the late 1970’s.  The home at 8991 Jane Road 
North was constructed in 1979, and it appears that this property (Lot 7) and the subject property (Lot 
9) have been under common ownership since at least this time.  In June of 1985, a previous owner 
applied for and was granted a variance by the City to grant Lot 9 status as a buildable lot.  It appears 
that this action was taken in response to the City’s adoption of the 1.5-acre minimum lot size for 
single-family residential lots in this neighborhood.  No home was ever constructed after the granting 
of the variance, and a tennis court was installed on the property later in 1985. 

As noted in the application materials, the present owner acquired the property sometime in 1985.  It 
appears that the property transfer occurred after the construction of the tennis court.  Additionally, 
the applicant has described that City assessed the subject property as a buildable lot in 1985 for a 
City project.  Based on this information, it does appear that the City would have considered the lot to 
be a buildable lot at the time the property was purchased by the applicant.  The applicant has also 
pointed out that the property has been assessed as a buildable lot the entire time that they have owned 
it. 

When the City was planning for the reconstruction of Jane Road North in 2012, the Planning 
Department was asked to review the assessment rolls for the project and to identify vacant, buildable 
parcels that would need to pay an assessment.  Lot 9 of Krause’s Addition was not deemed buildable 
because it does not meet the 60% size requirement referenced above.  Because the current Zoning 
Regulations include a one-year time limitation concerning the time frame for construction of projects 
subject to a variance, it is Staff’s opinion that the 60% requirement does apply in this situation.  The 
applicant has therefore submitted a variance request in order to re-classify this property as a builable 
lot. 

The applicant’s parcel is situated at the intersection of Jamaca Avenue North and Jane Road North, 
and is approximately 230 feet north of Lake Jane.  Other than a tennis court, there have been no other 
improvements constructed on the site.  There is a fairly heavy amount of tree cover surrounding the 
tennis court around the periphery of the lot.  All of the surrounding lots are occupied by single family 
residential homes.  In general, the properties to the north and west are larger lots (1.5 acres), while 
the properties to the south and east are smaller lots (generally under 1 acre).  In particular, there is a 
cluster of homes along the northern edge of Lake Jane than are very similar in size, and sometimes 
smaller, than the applicant’s parcel. 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING ISSUES 
In reviewing the applicable codes that apply to the subject property, Staff would like the Planning 
Commission to consider the following as it reviews this request: 

• RS District Setbacks.  Any new construction on the lot will need to comply with all required 
setbacks for the RS District.  The portion of the lot that abuts Jamaca Avenue North is 
considered the front property line, and is therefore subject to a slightly larger setback. 
 

• Driveway Access.  Although the City Code does not include any restrictions on the location 
of a driveway on the property, Staff is recommending that any future driveway access Jane 
Road North instead of Jamaca Avenue North, since the latter is the less traveled roadway in 
adjacent to the lot. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 4B – PUBLIC HEARING 
 



4 
 

• Impervious Coverage.  The RS District allows a maximum impervious coverage of 25% 
while the Shoreland Ordinance limits lot coverage to 15% or 6,000 square feet, whichever is 
greater.  The tennis court currently occupies 7,395 square feet, which is 21.6% of the lot.  At 
the time a new house is constructed on the property, the applicant will need to comply with 
the maximum impervious coverage allowed under the Shoreland Ordinance. 
 

• Shoreland Setbacks.  The lot is far enough away from Lake Jane that any new structure will 
be able to comply with structure and septic system setbacks. 
 

• Drainage Area.  There is an existing drainage area immediately to the west and to the 
northwest of the applicant’s lot, and it appears that a portion of the drainage area is also 
located on this lot.  While the adjacent Sprinborn’s Green Acres plat includes a drainage 
easement over the adjacent lots, there is currently no such easement in place on the 
applicant’s property.  Staff is recommending that the applicant be required to provide a 
drainage easement over the portion of the lot that collects storm water runoff as a condition 
of approval and prior to the issuance of any building permits for the property. 
 

• Septic and Drainfield Areas.  The subject parcel is large enough to meet the City’s 
minimum requirement of 20,000 square feet for a primary and secondary septic system site. 
 

• Surrounding Lots.  The neighboring lots within the public hearing notification area range in 
size from 11,424 square feet (0.26 acres) to 83,025 square feet (1.9 acres), and of these 13 
lots, the average size is 41,592 square feet (0.95 acres). 
 

• Variance Expiration.  The City Code specifies that variances are valid one year from the 
date a variance is issued.  If construction has not taken place within one year, the variance 
becomes void.  While the applicant has requested a full waiver of this requirement, Staff is 
recommending that the City maintain a specific deadline for construction of a home on the 
parcel.  Staff is suggesting five years as a reasonable expectation. 

 

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
An applicant must establish and demonstrate compliance with the variance criteria set forth in Lake 
Elmo City Code Section 154.017 before an exception or modification to city code requirements can 
be granted.  These criteria are listed below, along with comments from Staff regarding applicability 
of these criteria to the applicant’s request. 

1) Practical Difficulties.  A variance to the provision of this chapter may be granted by the Board 
of Adjustment upon the application by the owner of the affected property where the strict 
enforcement of this chapter would cause practical difficulties because of circumstances unique to 
the individual property under consideration and then only when it is demonstrated that such 
actions will be in keeping with the spirit and intent of this chapter.  Definition of practical 
difficulties - “Practical difficulties” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means 
that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control. 

Under this standard, the City would need to find that the classification of the subject parcel as a 
buildable lot is a reasonable use of the property not otherwise permitted under the zoning ordinance.  
In this instance, the property was originally platted as a buildable lot and there is evidence in the 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 4B – PUBLIC HEARING 
 



5 
 

City’s records that the current owner purchased the property with the understanding that it was a 
buildable lot.  Additionally, the lot is consistent in size with other parcels platted at the same time 
and that have subsequently been built upon.  The property has direct access to a platted and improved 
street, and a house can be placed on the property in manner consistent with the surrounding homes.  
Concerning the time extension associated with the variance request, Staff is recommending that a 5-
year deadline is a reasonable expectation for construction of a new home.   Proposed findings related 
to this criterion are as follows: 

FINDINGS: That the proposed use is reasonable because the lot was platted as a buildable parcel 
and all other parcels of similar size have had houses constructed on them since the subdivision was 
approved.  The property is very close to meeting the required 0.9 acre minimum lot size requirement, 
and construction of a home on this lot will not be any more obstructive than structures built on lots 
meeting the 0.9 acre requirement.  The applicant also purchased the lot at the time is was a buildable 
parcel, and the continued use of the property for a tennis court is not reasonable given the 
separation of this parcel by road right-of-way from any others under common ownership.  The 
applicant has demonstrated the ability to install a complaint septic system on the property.  A five 
year deadline for construction of a home on the property is a reasonable period of time for this work 
to be completed.  

2) Unique Circumstances.  The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner. 

In order to demonstrate compliance with this standard, the Planning Commission would need to 
identify those aspects of the applicant’s property that would not pertain to other properties within the 
same zoning classification.  In this case, the lot was platted as a buildable lot within an older 
subdivision.  Other properties in the area were platted at a later date and under a different set 
regulations.  The property owner also purchased the lot as a buildable lot, and the site has been 
assessed as such for the past 25 years.  Again, Staff is suggesting some findings that could be 
considered by the Planning Commission as follows: 

FINDINGS: That the applicant’s property is unique due to former platting of this property as a 
buildable lot and continued classification of the property as buildable since the lot was subdivided.  
The applicant purchased the property with the understanding that a house could someday be built on 
the property, and City records indicate that the lot was indeed buildable at the time of purchase.  
Other homes on neighboring smaller lots were constructed prior to the adoption of the City’s zoning 
regulations. 

3) Character of Locality.  The proposed variance will not alter the essential character of the 
locality in which the property in question is located. 

A formal set of findings related to this standard is suggested as follows:  

FINDINGS:  The applicant’s lot is larger than many of the lots in the surrounding neighborhood 
and is close to the minimum size needed to be considered buildable.  The lot is of sufficient size to 
allow the installation of a compliant septic system and to allow the placement of a home on the 
parcel consistent with neighboring structures. 

4) Adjacent Properties and Traffic.  The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of 
light and air to property adjacent to the property in question or substantially increase the 
congestion of the public streets or substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood.   

Propose findings for this criterion are as follows: 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 4B – PUBLIC HEARING 
 



6 
 

FINDINGS.  No impacts above and beyond those considered normal for any other single-family lot 
in the surrounding neighborhood would be expected should the variance be granted. 

Please note that the applicant has also provided a set of findings as part of the attached narrative and 
supporting documentation included with the application. 

Considering the potential findings of fact as suggested in the preceding section, Staff is 
recommending approval of the variance request based on the findings noted in items 1-4 above and 
with conditions of approval related to the drainage area on the site, the location of the driveway 
access, and the time limit for the expiration of the variance. 

 

DRAFT FINDINGS 
Please refer to the comments in the previous section.  Staff will be reviewing these findings with the 
Commission at its meeting. 

 

RECCOMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the request from Briggs 
and Morgan, PA acting on behalf of Suzanne Horning, for a variance from the minimum lot size 
requirements in the RS – Rural Single Family Residential zoning district and from the maximum 
time of one year for which a variance is valid.  This recommendation includes the following 
conditions of approval: 

1) The driveway for the future home of the lot shall access Jane Road North.  Driveway access 
to Jamaca Avenue North shall be prohibited. 

2) The applicant shall provide a drainage easement for the portion of the lot that collects storm 
water runoff from the subject property and adjacent parcels prior to the issuance of a building 
permit for the site.  The specific location of the drainage easement shall be approved by the 
City Engineer. 

3) The variance shall be valid for a period of five years, but may be renewed upon review and 
approval by the Board of Adjustment. 

4) A grading, erosion control, and storm water management plan shall be submitted in 
conjunction with a building permit for the property. 

5) The applicant shall secure any required permits from the Valley Branch Watershed District 
prior to commencing any grading or construction activity on the site. 

The suggestion motion for taking action on the Staff recommendation is as follows: 

“Move to recommend approval of the request for a variance from the minimum lot size 
requirements in the RS – Rural Single Family Residential zoning district and from the maximum 

time of one year for which a variance is valid, subject to the conditions of approval as 
recommended by Staff” 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    
1. Application Form  
2. Application and Project Narrative 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 4B – PUBLIC HEARING 
 



7 
 

3. Existing Site Conditions/Survey 
4. Location Map 
5. Krause’s Addition Plat 
6. Septic System Report – Tom Trooien 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS: 
- Introduction ....................................................... Community Development Director 

- Report by Staff .................................................. Community Development Director 

- Questions from the Commission ............................ Chair & Commission Members 

- Open the Public Hearing .................................................................................. Chair 

- Close the Public Hearing .................................................................................. Chair 

- Discussion by the Commission .............................. Chair & Commission Members 

- Action by the Commission ..................................... Chair & Commission Members 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 4B – PUBLIC HEARING 
 



























Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Data Scource: Washington County, MN
2-26-2014

Location Map: 09.029.21.11.0015

K

Jam
aca

 Av
e N

Jane Rd N

Variance Request
09.029.21.11.0015

0 200 400100 Feet

1"=200'




























